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Capital India Corp Private Limited

BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,
Capital India Corp Private Limited (“Company”)

Your Directors are pleased to present the 2 (Second) Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 (“FY 2022-23” or “period under review”).

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performance for the period under review is given hereunder:
(Amount in INR)

Particulars for the Financial Year | for the Financial Year

2022-23 2021-22
Total Income 75,89,39,479 --
Total Expenditure 4,22,18,944 4,92,47 805
Profit/(Loss) before tax 71,67,20,535 (4,92,47,805)
Tax Expense (including Deferred Tax) 7,50,15,343 618
Profit/(Loss) after tax 64,17,05,192 (4,92,48,423)
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 64,17,05,192 (4,92,48,423)

2. AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has not transferred any amount to the reserves.

3. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

The Company is carrying on the business of investment and holding investment in group companies. The
Company is registered under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office in the
NCT of Delhi.

During the period under review, the Company’s total income stood at INR 75,89,39,479 (Indian Rupees
Seventy Five Crore Eighty Nine Lakhs Thirty Nine Thousand Four Hundred Seventy Nine only) and the
Company has earned a Profit before tax of INR 71,67,20,535 (Indian Rupees Seventy One Crore Sixty Seven
Lakhs Twenty Thousand Five Hundred Thirty Five only).

4. DIVIDEND

With a view to bring down its borrowings, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the period under
review.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

During the period under review, there was no change in the capital structure of the Company. As on March
31, 2023, the Capital structure stands as follows:

Particulars Details

Authorised Share INR 5,06,06,060 (Indian Rupees Five Crores Six Lakhs Six Thousand Sixty only)
Capital divided into 50,60,606 (Fifty Lakhs Sixty Thousand Six Hundred Six) Equity Shares
having face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each
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INR 5,06,06,060 (Indian Rupees Five Crores Six Lakhs Six Thousand Sixty only)
divided into 50,60,606 (Fifty Lakhs Sixty Thousand Six Hundred Six) Equity Shares
having face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each

Paid-up Share
Capital

6. DEBENTURES

During the period under review, the Company has not issued/allotted any new debentures.

The Company had redeemed 4,535 (Four Thousand Five Hundred and Thirty Five) Optionally Convertible
Debentures (“OCDs”) having face value of INR 1,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Lakhs only) issued to Trident
Buildtech Private Limited during the FY 2022-23 aggregating to INR 45,35,00,000 (Indian Rupees Forty Five
Crores Thirty Five Lakhs). As on March 31, 2023, the following OCDs are outstanding:

Face Value Amount
S. No. | Name of Debenture Holder No. of OCDs (INR) (INR)
1 Trident Buildtech Private Limited 36,511 1,00,000 3,65,11,00,000

7. DETAILS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANY(IES)

As on March 31, 2023, below are the subsidiaries/step-down subsidiaries of the Company:

,‘i;. Name of the Company Nature of Relation

1. | Capital India Finance Limited (“CIFL") Subsidiary

2. | Credenc Web Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary

3. | Yellow Whale Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary

4. | Capital India Wealth Management Private Limited Wholly-Owned Subsidiary

5. | CIFL Holdings Private Limited Wholly-Owned Subsidiary

6. | Capital India Home Loans Limited Step-Down Subsidiary through CIFL
7. | Capital India Asset Management Private Limited Step-Down Subsidiary through CIFL
8. | Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (‘RFPL") * Step-Down Subsidiary through CIFL
9. | Kuants Wealth Private Limited Step-Down subsidiary though RFPL*
10. | NYE Insurance Broking Private Limited Step-Down subsidiary though RFPL®

RFPL is also an Associate of the Company.

#  Kuants Wealth Private Limited, ceased to become the Wholly-owned Subsidiary and became the
Step-Down subsidiary of the Company through RFPL with effect from April 18, 2022

5 w.e.f. the date of incorporation viz. June 01, 2022

The Company does not have any Joint Venture or other Associate (except as mentioned above) pursuant to
the provisions of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The composition of the Board is governed by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder. As on March 31, 2023, below is the composition of Board of Directors of the
Company:

S. No. | Name of Director Designation
1. Mr. Sumit Kumar Narvar Chairman and Managing Director
2. Mr. Keshav Porwal Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Deepak Vaswan Non-Executive Director
Page | 3
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On the basis of declaration received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the Directors are disqualified from being appointed as or holding office of Director as stipulated in Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company was not required to appoint any Key Managerial Personnel under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the period under review.

Particulars of employees receiving remuneration more than the limit prescribed
The provisions and disclosures required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to the Company.

9. MEETINGS
i) BOARD MEETING

During the period under review, 9 (nine) Board Meetings were held and the intervening gap between the
meetings were within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

S. Total no. of Directors on the No. of Directors present
date of meeting during the meeting

3

Date of Meeting

June 06, 2022
September 16, 2022
September 22, 2022
November 09, 2022
November 17, 2022
December 15, 2022
January 05, 2023
February 24, 2023
March 20, 2023

=
o
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The attendance of the Directors in the Board Meetings, during the period under review, is as follows:

S. No. | Name of Director No. of Board Meetings Attended
1. Mr. Sumit Kumar Narvar 9/9
2. Mr. Keshav Porwal 219
3. Mr. Deepak Vaswan 9/9

i) GENERAL MEETING

During the period under review, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023, was held on September 30, 2022.

10. STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on June 06, 2022, recommended the appointment
of M/s. AVK & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 02638N) as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company for a period of 5 (Five) consecutive years, to hold the office from the conclusion of 01st Annual
General Meeting of the Company up to the conclusion of 06" Annual General Meeting. The aforesaid
appointment was approved by shareholders at the 01t Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022.
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1.

12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Auditor's Report submitted by M/s. AVK & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
the Company, for the period under review, does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the period under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company did not accept any public deposits during the period under review. Therefore, the disclosures
required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act, made by the Company,
have been disclosed in the financial statements.

COST RECORDS

The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company for the period under review.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The provisions of the Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company for the period under
review.

INTERNAL AUDIT & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are
not applicable to the Company for the period under review.

Further, your Company has an adequate internal controls system, which is commensurate with the size and
nature of its business. The primary objective of the internal control system is to ensure that the operations are
being run effectively and efficiently to prevent any revenue leakage, that all its assets are safeguarded and
protected.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
occurred between the end of financial year to which these financial statements related and the date of this
report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH THE RELATED PARTIES

None of the transactions with related party(ies) comes within the ambit of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, the particulars of the transactions in Form AOC - 2 of the rules prescribed under the
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
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19.

20.

21,

22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

a. The activities of the Company are not energy intensive as the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity.

b. No technology has been developed and / or imported by way of foreign collaboration.
c. During the year, the Company had “NIL” foreign exchange earnings and outgo.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In today’s economic environment, Risk Management is a very important part of business. The main aim of risk
management is to identify, monitor and take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose
risks for the business. The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate
various risks to key business objectives. Major risks i.e., competition, legal changes, change in Government
policies, availability of finance, manpower as identified by the Company are systematically addressed through
mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, relating to
appointment of Independent Directors are not applicable to the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, relating to
constitution of Audit Committee, are not applicable to the Company.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, relating to
constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

During the period under review, the provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made
thereunder, relating to constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, are not applicable to the
Company.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding vigil mechanism, are not applicable to
the Company.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL

There has been no order passed by any authority which impact the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

During the period under review, there were no women employees in the Company. Hence, no such information
on the sexual harassment is being reported.

Page | 6
Annual Report 2022-23



Capital India Corp Private Limited

28. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS, IF ANY, REPORTED BY AUDITORS’ UNDER SECTION 143 (12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors’ of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the Board of Directors during the period under review.

29. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the provisions of Section
134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in preparation of the Financial Statements for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, and state that:

a. in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness(es) in the designs or
operations were observed.

30. GENERAL DISCLOSURE

Your Directors states that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items, during the
period under review:

a) The Company has not bought back any of its securities;

b) The Company has not issued any bonus shares;

c) The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares;

d) The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

e) The provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company;

f)  There was no revision in the financial statements of the Company;

g) There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016, and

h) During the financial year 2022-23, there was no instance of one-time settlement with Banks or Financial
Institutions. Therefore, as per rule 8(5)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, reasons of difference
in the valuation at the time of one-time settlement and valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or
Financial Institutions are not reported.

Page | 7

Annual Report 2022-23



Capital India Corp Private Limited

31. STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

32. COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS ISSUED BY THE RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

During the period under review, in accordance with the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI"), the Company falls under the
definition of Core Investment Company and requires registration with the RBI to carry on its business activity.

The Company has made necessary application for grant of registration with RBI and the same is under
consideration with RBI.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates and consultants for their
continued support extended to your Companies during the year under review.

By order and on behalf of the Board
Capital India Corp Private Limited

Sumit Kumar Narvar Keshav Porwal
Chairman & Managing Director Non-Executive Director
DIN: 02045194 DIN: 06706341

Date  :August 24, 2023
Place : New Delhi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members ofCapital India Corp Private Limited,

Report on theAudit of the Financial Statements,

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyingind ASFinancial Statements of Capital India Corp
Private Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss(including other comprehensive income), Statement of
changes in equity andthe Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (including Ind
AS) and other explanatory information(herein after referred to as “Ind “AS financial
statements™). '

i
T B B B bt R N T

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaidInd AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in Indiaincluding the Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the company as at
31st March, 2023 andits Profit (including other comprehensive income)and changes in
equityand its cash flowsfor the year ended on that date.

T G

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of financial statements in accordance with Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other ecthical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

S B T R A vy e s R Y

PECEIER iyt

R G AT T S S e AL

" Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e STy

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report and
Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our
‘Independent auditor’s reportthereon.
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AVK & Associates

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read |
the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the otber information is materially

inconsistentwith thelnd AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact.,there is nothing to report in this context,

Responsibilities of Managementfor the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™) with respect to the preparation of theselnd ASfinancial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performancein
i accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
1 Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

L e

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
. design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
i relevant to the preparation and presentation of thelnd AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

e e et e e e

In preparing theind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so,

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

B S B A Ty o e
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AVIC & Associates

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the F inancial Statemenis

B e T et

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thelnd AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAg willalways
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

o D P S

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Ind AS financial statements is
included in “Annexure A” of this auditor’s report.

Emphasis on Matter

Without qualifying our report we draw your kind attention:

On the Note no. 33 to the appended financial statements on the fact that the Company falls
under the definition of a Core Investment Company in accordance with the extant Master
Directions issued by RBI and the application for grant of registration as Core Investment
Company has been RBI Central Office, Mumbai within the permissible timelines and the said
application is under consideration with RBI.

RIS AR

T

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

T

T T e s

I, As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

e A e O e L B B P

Further, as required by Section 143 (3} of the Act, we repott that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

o

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flow dealtwith by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account, ‘

T T
R T e T s e R e BRI

T

R T e
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AVYIK & Associates

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind ASFinancial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules
made thereunder,

e i R B o B BT e o R T

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the company as
on 31" March, 2023taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure C’.Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid or provided remuneration to its directors, during the year; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i, TheCompany does not have any pendinglitigations which would impact
itstfinancial position.

i. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

T T e o e T T TS S e o P T S

jii.  Therewere no amounts required tobetransferred,tothe Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company,

B s B R T e

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any

SRR ERTAEE

TR

R

T e
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AVK & Associates

D T e e R T TR ST

RV E

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity(“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiarics™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

e e R e e

T N TR TR

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and  beliefno  funds(whicharematerial  either
individuallyorintheaggregate)havebeenreceived by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

. behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

o

T b e e B P e

T

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that there
presentations under sub-clause(i)and(ii}ofRulel1(e),as provided
under and(b)above, contain any material misstatement.

T T T Ty

TS

v.  The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year,

B T e T T e eemE o Ty

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Dated:24-08-2023 M.No:088309

UDIN: 23088309BGSXUAS5689
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N A e o e P A It

Amnexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditors’ Report of Capital India Corp Private Limited
for the period ended 31st March 2023

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of thelnd AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies including Ind AS used and the
reasonablencss of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

L A B o T

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concetn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Tnd AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

A 3 T R
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AVK & Associates

.+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of thelnd AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements,

T 2 2R R A B CReE

We communicate with Management of company regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

A B e SR R
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We also provide Management of company with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards,

For AVK & Associates
N Chartered Accountants

" (CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Place: New Delhi Partner
Dated:24-08-2023 M.No:088309
UDIN:23088309BGSXUAS5689
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Chartered Accountaits
WL, Fivavnpiara, Delhi-110088

Pl s (A -A700 00, Bovatl ¢ o viccag@gmall.com

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e e R e ————

The Annexure ‘B’ referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Capital India Corp Private Limited on_the Ind AS financial statements for the year

ended 31st March 2023:-

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by
the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal
course of audit, we state that:

i. - (a) TheCompany does not have any Property,PlantandEquipmenthence
reporting under clause 3(i) (a), (b},(d) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) The company donot own any immovable property hence reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) and (e} is not applicable in its case.

i, (a) The Company does no thave any inventory and hence reporting under
clause3(ii}(a)of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess
oS crores,in aggregate at any point of time during the period,from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets
and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

i, (a) According to the information and explanationsgiven to us and on the
basis of our examinationof the records,the company has made investments
and granted advancein the nature of Unsecured loans to Subsidiary

company:
With regards to Investments made:-
Particulars | Name of | Aggregate Aggregate Remarks
Lender amount of | amount of
investment [nvestment as on
during the year | balance sheet date
(Rs) {Rs.)
‘ Subsidiary | Capital India 2,00,000 5,00,000 Investment
[ Company Wealth madein
E Management 20000
i Private Ltd equity
r shares of Rs
: 10/- each
. Subsidiary | CIFL Holdings 2,00,000 5,00,000 Investment
Company Private Ltd madein
20000
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shares of Rs
10/- each

Subsidiary
Company

Yellow Whale
Technologies
Private Ltd

7695000

32285000

Investment
made in
3228900
Compulsory
Convertibie
debentures
of Rs 10/
cach

With regards to Loans and advances granted

Particulars | Name of | Aggregate Aggregate amount | Remarks
Lender amount  given | outstanding as on
during the year | balance sheet date
‘Subsidiary | Credenc Weh 200,00,000 200,00,000 Interest
Company Technologies bearing
Pvt Ltd @9%

(c ) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per information and

explanation obtained,the company has made investments and provided
Guarantees which being carried over in its books after its conversion from
LLP to Company,and based on the information and explanations obtained
such transactions executed at the time of erstwhile LLP cannot be
commented upon by us as an Auditor of the company.According to our audit
procedures and information and explanation obtained we state that the terms
and conditions of Investment made and Guarantees provided, had they been
made at the time after conversion cannot be said to be prejudicial to the
Interest of the Company.Details of Investments being carried over is as

follows:

Serial | Particulars Amount invested (Rs)
No
1, Investments in subsidiaries | 402,89,38,257/-

associates and other parties

Amount outstanding on the

balance sheet date

Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation obtained
regarding the transactions executed during the year under consideration we
state that the company has complied with the section 185 and section 186

of the Companies Act,

Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanation

1
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obtained we state the company has not accepted deposits within the
meaning of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the companies
act and rules made thereunder,

Vi, According to information and explanations obtained we report that the
maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section(1)of section148of the

CompaniesAct,2013 Hence,reporting under clause(vi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) In our opinion, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, as applicable, including Incometax, and other material
statutory dues with the authorities,

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Statutory dues
including Income Tax and other material statutory dues in amrears as at
March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

T BT AT P R
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¢) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause(a)above which have not
been deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes.

T T T S

viii.  Based on the audit procedure and information and explanation obtained we
state that there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a)Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation obtained we
state that the company has not botrowed any money from any bank or
Institution therefore clause 3 (ix) is not applicable.

(b) Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation obtained
we state that the company prior to its conversion pledged its investment to
guarantee a Loan taken by a related party amounting to Rs. 1,04,50,0000/-
,the said loan has been repaid in full and pledge has been withdrawn.

a) The Company has not raised money(s) by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments)during the year and hence
reporting under clause3(x)(a)ofthe Order is not applicable,

B e A B Pt L BT A e e E T e LD SR T

b)Based on our audit procedures and according to information and
explanation obtained we state that duringthe period the company hasnot
madeany preferential allotment or private placement of shares orconvertible
debentures (fully, partiaily or optionally convertible) during the vyear.
Accordingly, reporting underclause3(x)(b)ofthe Order is not applicable.

i, Based on our audit procedures and according to information and

e e e e g e
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explanation obtained,In our opinion:-

(@) No fraud by the Cdmpany and no material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and upto the date of this report,

{(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the company during the year.

In our opinion the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xiii, In our opinion,the Company as required under the provisions of Section
I77and188 of the Companies Act, 2013 has disclosed all the applicable
transactions with the related partiesseparately in its financial statements.

o e T s

Xiv, In our opinion and information and explanation obtained, the company does
not fall under the ambit of internal audit system as it is not required to have
an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv}) of the order is not applicable to the
company,

Xv. In our opinion during the year the company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors
and henceprovisionsofsection!92ofthe Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

XVI. (a) Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation
obtained, in our opinion, the Company is required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the ReserveBankoflndiaAct,1934 and application has
been made in this regard which is pending for consideration before the
RBL

(b)Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation
obtained,the company has conducted Non- Banking Financial activities
while having applied for registration as Core Investment Company with
Reserve Bank of India..

(¢)Based on our audit procedures and information and explanation obtained
In our opinion the company is a core investment company (CIC) as
defined in regulation made by Reserve Bank of India and according to
information and explanation given it has made an application for grant of

such registration to RBI which is pending.

S S G A BT e T T
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(d) In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanation given to us there is no core investment company within the
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Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016).

xvil, The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered
by our audit. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not
applicable for the year. '

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company
during the period.

R T SRR

In our opinion and according to explanation and information given to ug
there is no material uncertainty exist as on the date of the audit repott that
the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date,

S AT

The company is not required to spend towards Corporate  Social
Responsibility (CSR) in accordance with Section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for
the year,

D P e i o P T e

XX, Based on our audit procedures and according to information and explanation
obtained, in our opinion the company is not required to prepare consolidate
d financial statements therefore the inclusion of comments by respective
auditors as required by clause 3(xxi) is not applicable .

R B A T T

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N
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" (CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Place: New Delhi Partner

Dated: 24-08-2023 M.No:088309

UDIN: 23088309BGSXUAS5689
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Chartered  Acconntants
L0, Pivasaprova, Delhi-110088

Phi o FLA-3702%164, Eiail avlieas@gmail.comm

ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section

143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capital India Corp
Private Limited(“the Company”) as of 31 March,2023 in conjunction with our audit of the.
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilitics include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Anditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the exfent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, '
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AVK & Associates

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial repotting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Infernal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March,2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AVK & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 02638N

S o
iy

(CA Ashwani Kumar Relan)
Place: New Delhi LA, Partner

Dated: 24-08-2023 M.No:088309
UDIN: 23088309BGSXUAS5689
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Capital India Corp Private Limited
CiN: UB5990D12022PTC395053
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

[Amount in INR]

Particulars Notes Asat Asat
315t March, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
Non-turrent assets
Property, Plant and Equipments and intangible Assets
-Property, Plant and Equipments - -
-Intangible Assets 5 3,39,185 3,56,100
Financial assets
-investment 6 4,02,89,38,257 4,24,61,28,257
-Other financial assets 7 3,17,71,702 -
Deferred tax assets (net) - -
Total Non-currgnt assets 4,05,10,49,144 4,24,64,84,357
Current assets ’
Financial assets
-Loan and advances 8 2,00,00,000 -
-Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,19,228 83,72,096
Other current assets 10 40,975 11,840
Total Current assets 2,03,60,203 83,84,036
Tatal assets 4,08,14,09,348 4,25,48,68,394
EQUITY AND LIABELITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 5,06,06,060 5,06,06,060
Other eguity 12 22,53,24,584 {41,63,80,208)
Total equity 27,59,31,044 {36,57,74,148}
Non-current liabitities
Financlal liabilities
-Borrowlng 13 3,65,44,50,000 4,10,46,00,000
-Defferad Tax Lizbilities 14 15,343 -
Total Non-current liahilities 3,65,44,65,343 4,14,46,00,000
Current llabilities
Financial liabilities
-Borrowing 15 13,15,95,000 43,70,00,000
-Trade Payable
a, Total outstanding due of micro & small enterprise
b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprise i6 - 4,181
-Other financial liabilities 17 1,64,12,242 7,46,51,244
-Provistons 18 10,62,397 -
Other current liabilities 19 . 19,43,322 48,87,117
Tatal Current liabilities 15,10,12,961 51,60,42,542
Total equity and liabilities 4,08,14,09,348 4,25,48,68,394

it

summary of significant accounting policies 3
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Apital lndia Corp Private Limited

W
. \%‘},“

As per our report of even date attached
For AVK & Assoclatas

Chartered Accountants
Flrm Regn, No. 02638N

[Ashwani Kr. Relan)

SUMIT KUMARNARVAR DEEPAK VASWARN
Partner Chalrman and Managing Directar Director
M. No. 88309 DN : 02045194 DIN : 07814811

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023




Capital India Corp Private Limlted
CIN: UB5890DL2022PTC395053
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended on 31st March, 2023

{Amaunt in INR]}

Particulars Notes For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Income
Revenue from Operaticns 20 75,61,65,900 -
Other income 21 27,73,579 -
Total income 75,89,39,479 -
Expenses
Finance Cast 22 3,86,04,693 4,88,55,393
Depreciation/ Amortisation 5 16,915 -
Other expenses 23 35,97,336 3,92,412
Total expenses 4,22,18,944 4,92,47,805
Profit/ {Loss) hefore tax 71,67,20,535 (4,92,47,805)
Tax expense / {credit) 7,50,00,000 -
Deferred tax 15,343 618
Total Tax expense 7,50,15,343 618
Net Profit/ {Loss) before tax (A} 64,17,05,192 {4,92,48,423)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will be reclassifiad to profit or loss - -
Itemns that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income {B} - -
Total Comprehensive Income (A + B) i 64,17,05,192 {4,92,48,423)
Earnings per equity share nominal value of INR 10 each {Previous 24
Year : INR 10 each)
Basic {in INR) 126.80 (197.34)
Diluted (in INR) 126.80 (197.34)

Summary of significant accounting policies
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached Far and on behalf of the Boar,d/ il
For AVK & Assoclates Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No, 02638N
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s

SUMIT |(UMAR@AR

i
‘(Ashwani Xr. Relan}
Partner Chairman and Managing Director
M, No. 088309 DIN : 02045194
Place ; New Delhi Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023 Date: 24-08-2023

DEEPAK VASWAN
Director
DIN : 07814811

Place : New Delht
Date: 24-08-2023




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN; UB5950DL2022PTL395053
statement of Cash Flow for the Year Ended on 315t March, 2023

{Amount in INR)

Particulars Forthe Year ended 31st | For the Year ended
March, 2023 31st March, 2022

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax 64,17,05,192 (4,92,47,805}

Depreciation/ Amortisation 16,915 -

Expenses related to conversion of LLP into private company - {5,88,526)

Ad)ustment for:
Deprectation

Operating profit before working capital changes
Ad)ustment for :

64,17,22,106 14,58,36,331)

Incrase/(Decrease) in trade paysbles, other Non-financlal liab. -5,96,09,237 7,85,78,793
{Increase}/Cecrease in other financial assets, other non financial assets 17,34,84,263 {49,694)
Cash used in operations 75,55,97,132 2,90,92,768
income taxed paid { net of refund recelved) - {618}
Net cash generated from operating activitles (A} 75,55,97,132 2,490,92,150
B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment in other Companies -80,95,000 -
Net Cash used In Investing actlvities {B) {80,95,000) -

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCE ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Secured/ Unsecured loans (75,85,05,000) {35,02,000)
Borrowings 33,50,000 (2,01,32,368)
Net cash generated from financing activities {C) {75,55,55,000) {2,36,34,968)
D} Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) ~80,52,868 54,57,182
E) Cash and cash equlvaients as at the beginning of the year 83,72,096 29,14,914
F} Cashand cash equivalents as at the end of the year 3,19,228 83,72,096

Cash and cash equivalents comprises:

Particulars

For the Year ended 31st | For the Year ended

March, 2023 31st March, 2022
{a} Cash on hand 23,430 25,700
{b} Balances with bank 2,95,798 83,46,396
3,19,228 83,72,096

summary of significant accounting policles
See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date at}acheg "
For AVK & Assaciates - fa
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 02638N
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yde -
5shwani Kr. Relan}
Partner

M. No, (088308

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023

For and on

SUMIT KUMARITARVAR
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN 1 02045194

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023

hatf of the Board of /ﬁ%}t@ﬁ f
‘apital iglia Copp Private Limited/ oy

1,:-_;:};

i
e
Ry
. /DEEPAK VASWAN
-~ Diractor
DN ; 7814811

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65995DL2022PTC395053
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

1

21

22

23

24

31

311

3.1.2

Carporate Infermation

Capital India Corp Private Limited Having its registered office at 2nd Floor, DLF Centre, Sansad Marg, New Delhi-110001, was
incarporated on 2dth March 2022 as a private limited Company under the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act’) upon conversion of LLP
namely Capital India Corp LLP.

The main objective of theis to carry on business of an Investment Company and to buy, underwrlte, sub-underwrite, to invest in with
or without interest or securlty and to engage of financing and to provide venture capital, seed capital, loan capital or to give
guarantees on behalf of the company as permitted under the applicable laws,

Basis of preparation

Statement of compilance

The financial statements comply in ali matarial aspacts with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companles Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

Basis of measurement

The Financlal Statements have een prepared on the historical cast convention and on accrual basls, modified to include Fair
valuation of certain financial instruments, ta the extent required or permitted in Ind AS as set outin relavant accounting policies.

Fanctional and presentation currency
Indian rupee is the functional and presentation currency.
Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statemants in confermity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgrnents and
assumptions.

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policles and the reported amounts of assets and
liabitities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabllitles at the date of the Rnanclal statements and reported amotnts of
revenues and expenses during the period.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, Appropriate changes in
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in ¢lrcumstances surrounding the estimates, Changes In estimates
are reffected In the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements,

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use
of assumptions In these financial statements are:

- Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

- Valuation of financial instruments

- Provisions and contingencies

- Income tax and deferred tax

Significant accounting palicies
Revenue Recognition
Revenue from operations

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue cah be
reliably measured and there exists reasonabile certainty of its recavery.

Other revanue

intarest incame Is recognised using effective Interest method, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through expacted fife of the financial asset to the gress carrying amount of the financial asset When calculating
the effective interest rate, the company estimates the expected cash flows by considering ail the contractual terms of the financial
instrument but doas not consider the expected credit losses,




Capltal Indla Corp Private Limited
CIN: Us5990DL2022PTC395053
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2023

3.2

33

Proparty, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, niet of accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment fosses, if any.

The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing tha
asset to its working condition for its Intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase vrice,

Subsequent expendiltures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the corpany and the cost of the item can be measured reltably.

All ather expenses on existing preperty, plant and equipments and intangible assets, inciuding day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such axpenses
are incurrad,

Praperty, Plant and Equipment not ready for the Intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capltal work-in-
progress”.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments and Intangible assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposal praceeds and tha carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and are recognized In the statement
of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognized.

Depreciation oh Property, Plznt and Equipment is calcutated on written dewn value method basis using the ratio arrived as per the
useful life prescribed under Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of Proparty, Piant and Equipment purchased during the year, depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on
which such asset Is ready to use.

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised, only where it is probable that future seonomic benefits attributabie ta the asset will accrue to the
enterprise and the cost can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are statad at cast, less accumulated amortization and impaivment losses, if any.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use oh the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as intangible assets under
development,

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost, subsequently, intangible sssets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangibie assets ara assessed as either finite or indefinite. Finlte-fife intangible assets are amortized on a straight-
iine hasls over the period of their expected useful lives, Intanglble assets are amortized over a period of six years on stralght line
hasis as per the useful [ife prescribed under Schedule !l to the Companies Act, 2013. Intangibla assets acquired / purchased during
the year are amartised on & pro-rata basis from the date on which such assets are ready to use,

Intangible assets with an Indefinite usefu} life are not amortised. Such Intangible assets are tested for impairment.

The residual value, useful live and method of amortization of intanglble assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
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3.4.1

3.4.2

vi

Financial Instruments
initial recognition

The company recognizes financial assets and financlal liabilities when It becomes a party to the contractual provisiens of the

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on Initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or isste of financial assets and financlal liabllities that are not at falr
value through profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair value of financlal assets or financial lizbilities on inltial
recoghition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date,
Subsequent measurement
Non-derlvative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financlal asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost [f it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial 2sset Is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income If It is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financlal asset give rise on specifled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business maodel. For such equity instruments, the
subseguent changes in fair value are recognized In other comprehensive income,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categaries are subsequently measured at falr valued through profit or loss.
Fair value changes are recognised as other income in the Staternent of Profit or Loss.

Financiai lizbilities
Financial lizbilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Investments in subsldiarles, associates and joint ventures
investments in subsidlarles, associates and joint ventures are carried at cost in the separate financlal statements.

Equty instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities,
Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issuance of equity instrumnents are recognlsed as a deductien from aguity Instrument
net of any tax effects,
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3.5

3.6

36.1

Derecognition

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.A financial [iabifity is derecognized when
obligation specifled In the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Off-setting

tinancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount s presented in the balance sheet when the company currently has a
legaily enforceable right to offset the recagnised amount and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneousty.

Fair VValue Measurament

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction hetween market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measuremnent assumes that the transaction to sel} tha asset or transfer the lability takes place either:
- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of 3 principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A falr valua measurement of a hon-financlal asset takes Into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefit by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that woutld use the asset in Its highest and

The company uses valfuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to

measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant ohservable inputs and minmmizing the use of unabservable inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on Inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure falr value that are either
ohservabla or unchservable and consists of the following three levels:

Level 1—inputs are quoted prices [unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Inputs are other than qusted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabitity either directly {i.e, as
pricas) or Indirectly {i.e. derived prices)

Leve! 3 — inputs are not based on observable market data {uncbservable inputs).Falr values are determined in whole or in part using
a valuation model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the
sarne instrument nor are they based on available market data.

income tax

Income tax expense comptises current taxand deferred tax,

Current Tax

Current tax Is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, In which case, the current tax is also recognised In other comprehensive incame or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax for current and prior pertods Is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

turrent tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and where It intends elther ta settle on & net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the hability simultanecusly.
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3.7

3.7.1

3.7.2

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in prafit ar loss, except when it refates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly tn equity, in which case, the deferred tax Is also recagnised in other comprehensiva income or directly In equity, respectively.

Defarred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liabiiity arises
from initial recognition of goodwAll; or initial recagnition of an asset or ltability in a transaction which Is not a business combination
and at the time of transaction, affects nelther accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and carry forwaid of
unusad tax credits to the extent that It is probable that taxable profit will be available agalnst which those temporary differences,
lasses and tax credit can be utilized, except when deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences arise from the initiat
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the perlad when the asset s realized or
the liability is settled, based on the tax rules and tax laws that have heen enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, where company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and where it intends either to settle ona net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the limbility simultaneously,

Daferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probahle that the refated
tax benefit will be realized.

impalrment
Financlal assets

The company recognizes loss aliowances using the expected credit loss {ECL) madet for the financial assets which are not fair valued
through profit or loss.

Loss allowance for trade receivahles with na significant financing component Is measured at an amount egual o lifetime ECL.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount aqual to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase n eredit risk from initial recognitlon in which case those are measured at {ifetime ECL.

The impalrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the perlod Is recognised as income / expense In the statement of
profit and loss,

Nan-financial assets

Praperty, plant and equipments and intanglble assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indicatton that an asset may be impalred. If any indication exists
the company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount,

An asset's recaverable amount is the higher of an assets net sefling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individuat asset, unfess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset Is considered impaired and Is written down to its
recoverable amount. The impalrment lass Is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

In assessing value n use, the estimatad future cash flows are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken Into account, if avaliable, If no such transactiens can be
identified, an appropriate veluation model s used.
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3,10

lease
Campany as tessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Office building. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i} the contract Invalves the use of an identified asset {ii) the Company has
substantially all of the ecopomic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the |ease and (i} the Campany has the right to
direct the use of the asset,

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Campany recognizes a right-of-use {ROU} asset and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term ieases) and low
value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the {ease payments as an operating expense on
a stralght-line basis over the term of the |ease.

The ROU assets are Initially recognized at cost, which comprises the Initial amount of the lease liahility adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any leasa incentives. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assats are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-fine basis over the shorter of tha tease term and useful life
of the underlying asset.

The lease Hability is inltially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate impliclt in the fease or, If not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases,

Lease liabllity and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as
financing cash flows.

Borrawing costs

Borrowing cost Includes interest and other costs that company has incurred In connection with the borrowing of funds,

Borrowing costs directly attributahle to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset,

All ather horrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur,

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific horrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted froms the borrowing costs eligihle for capitalization.

Erployee Benefits

Shart term employee benefits for salary and wages including accumulated leave that are expacted to be settied wholly within 12
months after the end of the reporting peried In which employees render the related service are recognized as an expense In the
statement of profitand loss.

Tha campany measures the expacted cost of absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accuraulated at tha reporting date. As per Campany's policy, no leave is expected to be carried farward beyond
12 menths from the reporting date,

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has na cbligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to tha provident fund scheme as an
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service.

‘The company operates one definad benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity plan. The costs of providing benefits under the plan
are determined on the basis of actuariat valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out using the projected unit credit
method made at the end of each reporting date. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit Nability {asset} comprise of actuariat
gains and losses, the effact of the asset celling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabifity / (asset)).Ra-
rmeasurement are recognised in other comprehensive income and will not be reclassified to profit or loss in a subsequent nerlod,
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3.14

3.15
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Pravislons

A provision is recognized when the company has a present cbligation as a result of past event and it Is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will he required to sett{e the obligation and a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amount
of the obligation.

If the effect of the tima value of money s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that refiects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speclfic te the liability.When discounting 1s used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost. '

Provisions are nat discounted to thelr present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. Thase estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted ta reflect the current best astimates.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one ar more uncertain future events beyand the contral of the company or a present obligation thatis not recaghized
because It is not prohable that an outflow of resaurces will be required to settle the obligation. A centingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there Is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does
not recognize a contingent lability but discloses its exlstence in the financial statements.

Contlagent Asset

A contingent asset Is a possible asset that arlses from past events and whose existence will ba confirmed only be oceurrence or non-
sccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whotly within the control of the company. The company does not recognize a
contingent asset but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Forelgn Currency

tnitial recognition
Forelgn currency transactions aze recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
betwaen the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Converslon

Forelgh currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date, Non-monetary items,
which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction.

Exchange difference
All exchange differencas are recognized as income or as expenses In the yearin which they arise,

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank {including demand deposits) and in hand
and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible te known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in vaiue and bank overdrafts. Bank overdraft is shown within
cash and cash equivalents,

Farnings per share

Baslc earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributahle to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Inventories

inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost of materials is determined on weighted average basis. Net
realizable valus is the estimated selting price less estimated cost nacessary to make the sale.
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Segment Reporting

An operating segment s component of the company that engages In the business activity from which the company earns revenues
and incurs expenses, for which discrete financlal informatlon s availahle and whose operating results are regutarly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker, in deciding about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The
company's chief operating decision maker Is the Managing Directar.

Assets and flabilitias that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other
assets and liabilitles are disclosed as un-allecable,

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment, All other expenses which are
not attributable or allacable to segments have been disciosed as un-aliocable expenses,

The company prepares its segment Information in conformity with the accounting poficies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the company as a whole.

Cash Flow Statament

Cash flows are reported using Indirect method whereby profit for the period Is adjustad for the effects of the transactlons of non-
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts and payments and items of income or expenses
associated with Investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from: operating, Investing and financing actlvities of the Company
are segregated.

Events after reperting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provida evidence of canditions that existed at the end of the reporting perlod,
the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material slze
or nature are only disclosed,

Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Carporate Affalrs (“MCA") natifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Corapanles (Indian
Accaunting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April ist, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from decucting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received frem
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intendad use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sajes
proceads and refated cost in profit or Joss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any Impact in its recognition of Its
property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assassing whether to
derecognise a financial Nability, The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant Impact in its financial
statements.
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A. Equity Share Capital

{Amount in INR}

Balance as at O1st April, 2022

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior
period errors

Restated Balance as at Olst
April, 2022

Changes In Fquity
Share Capital during
the current year

Balance as at 31st
March, 2023

5,06,06,060

5,06,06,060

5,06,06,060

{Amount in INR}

Balance as at 14th March, 2022

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to prior

Restated Balance as at 14th

Changes in Equity
Share Capita) during

Balance as at 31st

pariod errors March, 2022 the current year March, 2022
- - - 5,06,06,080 5,06,06,060

B. Other Equity

{Amount in INR)

Other Equity
Particulars Reserve and Surplus Tatal
Retained Farnings
Balance as at 14th March, 2022 {36,65,43,259} {36,65,43,259}
Total comprehensive income for the remaining year 2021-22 {4,92,48,423) {4,92,48,423}
' 5,88,526 88,526

Expenses related to conversion of LLP to private limited company { ) S !
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 [41,63,80,208) (41,63,80,208)
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 {41,63,80,208) {41,63,80,208)
;8;' comprehensive Income for the year ended on 31st March, 64,17,05,192 64,17,05,192
Balance as at 315 March, 2023 22,53,24,984 22,53,24,984

As per aur report of even date attached

For AVK & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 02638N,

{Ashwani Kr, Relan)

Partner
M. No, 0B8309

Place : New Dethi
Date; 24-08-2023

For and an hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Capital India Corp Private Limited

P

SUMIT AR NARVAR
rman and Managing
Director

DIN : 02045134

Place : New Delhi
Date; 24-08-2023

\»

DEEPAK VASWAN

Director
DIN : 07814811

Place : New Delhi
Date: 24-08-2023
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Note 5 : Other Intangible Assets

As at 31st March, 2023

{Amount in INR)

Particulars

Intellectual Property
Rights

Total

As at 01st April, 2022

As at 01st April, 2022

Additions

Disposals

Adjustments

Gross Black As at 31st March, 2023

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 01st April, 2022

Charge for the year

Disposals

Adjustments

Accumulated Depreciation As at 31st March, 2023

Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March, 2023

3,56,100

1,56,100

3,56,100

3,56,100

16,915

16,915

16,915

16,915

3,39,185

3,39,185

As at 31st March, 2022

Particulars

intellectual Property
Rights

Total

As at 01st April, 2021

As at 0ist April, 2021

Additions

Disposals

Adjustments

Gross Block As at 31st March, 2022

Accumulated Depreciation

As at 01st April, 2021

Charge for the year

Disposals

Adiustments

Accumulated Depreciation As at 31st March, 2022

Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March, 2022

3,56,100

3,56,100

3,56,100

3,56,100

3,56,100

3,56,100
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Motes forming part of the financlal statements for the year endad 31st March, 2023

{Amount in INR)

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

6
(a)

{b}

xR

Non-current financial assets- Investment
Fully paid equity shares {unquated}
-Capital Indla Wealth Management Privata Limlted
{50000 Equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 each}
-CiFL Holdings Private Lirmited
150000 Equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 each)
-Credenc \Web Technolagies Private Limited
(5754000 Equity shares having a faca value of Rs 10 each)
-Rapipay Fintech Private Limited
(8475000 Equity shares having a face value of Rs,10 each)
-Kuants Wealth Private Limited
{3030000 Equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 each}
“Yellow Whale Technologies Private Hmited
{15600 Equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 each)
“Yellow Whale Technaologles Private Limited

Fully paid equity shares (quoted)
-Capital India Finance Limited
(56775720 Equity shares having a face value of Rs 10 each)
~Devyani International Ltg
4500000 Equity shares having a face value of Re 1 each)

nvestment in LEP
~Yellow Whale Technologies LLP

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market volue theraof
Aagregate amount of unquoted investments

{3228300 Campulsory Convertible Debentures having a face value of Rs 10 each)

5,00,000

5,600,000

20,13,00,000

8,47,78,000

1,556,000

3,22,89,000

3,00,000
3,00,000
20,13,00,000
8,47,78,000

3,03,00,000

(Al the share of Devyani internatlonal Lid, were pledged to Axis Finance Limited Refer nate 29)

31,95,23,000

3,70,94,15,257

31,64,78,000

3,70,94,15,257

19,49,85,000

3,70,84,15,257

3,90,44,00,257

2,47,50,000

2,47,50,000

4,02,89,38,257

4,24,61,28,257

5,14,04,73,683
51,95,23,000

7,88,27,51,214
34,17,28,000

Other financial assets
~Fixed Deposits

3,17,71,702

3,17,71 702

Loan and advances

-ntercarporate Loans 2,00,00,000 -
2,00,00,000 -
9 |Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
~In current accounts 2,95,798 83,46,396
-Cash on hand 23,430 25,700
3,19,228 83,72,096
10 {Other current assets
-Balance with GST Authorlties - ITC Input 36,360 11,940
-Advance from Custornars 3,960 -
-tnterest recelvable on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 655 -
40,975 11,940




Note 11 ; Equlty Share Capital

Authorised capital

{Amount in INR}

Particulars J1st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
50,60,606 {Previaus Year 50,60,606) equity shares having face value of INR 10 each 5,06,06,060 5,06,06,060
Total 5,06,06,060 5,06,06,060

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
50,60,606 {Previous Year 50,60,506) equity shares having face value of INR 10 each 5,06,06,060 5,06,06,060
5,06,06,060 5,06,06,060

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares:

As on 31st March, 2023, the company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share, Each Holder of equity share Is entitied to one

vate per share,

fn the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recieve remalning assets of the company after distribution of all the
preferential amounts, The distribution will be in the proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Reronciliation of the number af shares

. %15t March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Particulars

No, of Share Ameunt No. of Share Amount
No. of Shares sutstanding at the begining of the year 50,860,606 5,06,06,060 - -
Add: Equity Share raised during the Year - - 50,60,606 5,06,06,060
No. of Shares Qutstanding at the end of the year. 50,690,606 5,06,06,060 50,60,606 5,06,06,060
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Particulars 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

No. of Share %holding No. of Share %holding
Equity Shares
Sumit Kumar Narvar 24,04,800 47.52 24,04,800 47.52
Poaham Narvar 22,54,500 44,55 22,54,500 44,55
Tatal 46,59,300 92.07 46,59,300 92.07
Detail of Promoter's Holding

Shares held by Promoters as at 31st March, 2023 Change during the year
Particulars Mo, of Shares %halding No. of Shares %holding
Promoter's Name
Sumit Kumar Marvar 24,04,800 47.52 - -
Pocnam Narvar 22,54,500 44.55 - -
Keshav Porwal 1,00,200 1.98
Trident Bulldtech Private Limited 2,50,500 4,95
Deepak Vaswan 50,606 1.00 - -
Total 50,60,606 100.00 - -
Shares held by Promoters as at 31st March, 2022 Change during the year

Particulars No. of Shares “holding No, of Shares %holding
Promoter’s Name
Sumit Kumar Narvar 24,04,800 47.52 24,04,800 100.00
Poonaim Narvar 22,54,500 44,55 22,54,500 100,00
Keshav Porwat 1,00,200 1.58 1,00,200 100.00
Trident Buildtech Private Limited 2,50,500 4.95 2,50,500 100.00
Deepak VYaswan 50,606 1.00 50,606 100.00
Total 50,60,606 100,00 50,60,606 -




Capital India Corp Private Limited
CIN: U65990DL2022PTC395053
Note 12 ; Other Equity

{Amaunt in INR)

Other Equity

Particulars Reserve and Surplus Total
Retained Earnings

Halance as at 14th March, 2022 |36,65,43,259) (36,65,43,259)
Total comprehensive inceme for the remaining year 2021-22 (4,92,48,423) {4,92,48,423}
Expenses related to conversion of LLP to private limited (5,88,526} (5,88,526)
company
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 {41,63,80,208) {41,63,80,208)
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 {41,63,80,208) {41,63,80,208)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended on 31st 64,17,05,192 64,17,05,192
March, 2023
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 22,53,24,984 22,53,24,984




Capital India Corp Private Limlted
CIN: U65980DL2022PTC395053
Notes forming part of the financlal statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

{Amount in INR)

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

13 {Non Current financial llabilities
Borrowing
-Optionally Convertible Debenture 3,65,11,00,000 4,10,46,00,000
(0.01% Unlisted unsecured redeernable optionally fully convertible debentures)
-Trident Bulldtech Pyt, Ltd, 33,50,000 -
{Borrowed @ interest 12% , Repayable in 5 Years )
3,65,44,50,000 4,10,46,00,000
14 |Deffered Tax Liabliities
-bue to Timing Difference 15,343 -
15,343 .
Current financial llabilities
15 |Borrowlng (Unsecured) - Intercorporate Loans
-Analee Buildcon Pvt, Ltd 13,15,95,000 15,00,00,000
{Borrowed @ interest 12.5%, Repayable on Demand )
-Rangoli Resorts Put, Ltd. - 25,00,00,000
-Trident Buildtach Pvt, Ltd, - 3,70,00,000
13,15,95,000 43,70,00,000
16 |Trade payables
-Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafi enterprises - -
~Total outstanding dues other than micro enterprises and smal| epterprises - 4,181
- 4,181

17

Current financlal ilabilities - Others
-Interest Payable

1,64,12,242

7,40,51,244

1,64,12,242

7,40,51,244

18 |Provisions
-income Tax Provision 10,62,357 -
10,62,397 -
18 |Other current Habilities
-Statutory Dues Payable 18,93,822 48,83 515
-Audit Fee Payable 49,500 50,000
~Cthers - 53,602
19,43,322 49,487,117




Capital india Corp Private Limited

CIN: U65390D1.2022PTC395053
Notes farming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 {Amount in iNR]
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

20

Revenue from Operations
Profit on Sale of investment

74,04,88,328

Dividend income 56,77,572 -
Rovalty Income 1,00,00,000 -
75,61,65,900 -
21 [Other income
QOther non operating income
tntereston FD 12,07,864 -
Interest Recelved 15,65,715 -
27,73,579 -
22 {Fihanclal Cost
interest Expenses 3,86,04,693 4,88,55,393
3,86,04,693 4,88,55,393
23 {Other expenses
Advertisement - 4,800
Bank Charges 6,66,855 7,740
Interest on GST 23,319 -
intereston TDS 3,642 -
Late filing fees on TDS 300
CDSL Charges 5,685 19,913
NSDL Charges 1,505 -
Filing Fees 30,731 1,600
Govt Fee - 1430
Security Transaction Tax 8,25,126 -
Commission Expenses 10,08,204 -
Demat account charges - 1,488,452
Legal & Professional Charges 4,53,380 90,000
Consultancy Charges 2,27,250 28,777
Other Expenses 2,96,340 -
Audit Fee 55,000 540,000
35,97,336 3,92,412
24| Earnings per equity share
Net profit after tax as per staternent of profitand loss 64,17,05,192 (4,92,48,423)

Amount available for equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares In calculating basic / diluted EPS

Earnings per Share, basic and diluted (INR)
Face value per equity share {INR}

64,17,05,192

50,60,606

126,80
10

14,92,48,423)

2,49,564
(197.34)
10
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Capltal india Corp Private Limited
CH: LIE5990D12022PTC395053
Notes to financial statements for the Financial year ended 315t March, 2023

26 Financial lnstruments
This section gives an overview of the significance of flnanclal instritments for the Compsny and provides additiona! Information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the
criterla for recognitian, the basis of messurement and Lhe basis on which [ncome and expenses are recognlsed, in respect of each dass of financlal essat, Ananclal Hability and equity Instrument are disclosed
nhete 2,
(A} Financial assets and Mahiltles;
The accounting classification of eath categary of financlal Instruments, and their carrylng amounts, are set out below;

AsatMarch 31, 2023 {Amount In INR}
Falr value through profitar  Falr value throngh other Amorilsed cost Tatal carrying

Financlal Assels

loss comprehensive income value
{oan and advances - - 2,04,00,000 2,00,00,000
Other financlal assets - - 3,17,71,702 317,71,702
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3,19,228 3,519,228
Tatal - - 5,20,90,930 5,20,30,530

Falrvalue through prefitor  Falrvalue through ather Amoartisad cost Fotal carrying

Financizl LiabHitles
lass camprehensive Income valua
Non-current borrowings - - 3,65,44,50,000 3,65,44,50,060
Current borrowlings - - 13,15,55,000 13,15,95,000
Pravisions - - 10,62,397 10,62,397
Other financlal lizbliities - - 1,64,12,242 1,64,12,242
Total - - 3,0,35,19.639__ 3,80,35,19,639
As at March 31, 2022
Fimancial Assets Falr value through profit of  Falr value through ather Amortised cost Total carrying
loss comprehensive income valye
Cash and cash equlvalenls - - 83,732,096 83,72,096
Total - - 83,372,096 #31,72,036
Financial Lisbllities Fair value throttgh profit or Fair vatue through other Amortised cost Total carsying
loss comprehensive income value
Mon-current borrowlngs - - 4,10,46,00,000 4,10,46,00,000
Current borrowings 43,70,00,000 43,70,00,000
Trade payables - - 4,181 4,181
Other fnancial Habllities - - 7,40,51,244 7,10,51,244
Total - - 4,61,56,55,42% 4,61,56,55,415

NoterInvesiments in equity of subsidaries,assoclates and jolnt ventures wihich are carried at cost are not coverad under Ind AS 107 and hence not bzen Incuded above,

The management assessed that falr value of financial assets such as cash and cash equivalant, other bank balances, trade reccivables, loans, other financial assets etc, and all the financlal lisbllitles

signtficantly approximate their carrying amounts due to thelr shert term maturity profiles.
The Company datermines [zl values of financial assets or Habllities hy discounting the contractual cash inflaws / outflows using prevalling Intarest rates of financial instruments with similar terms, The Initisl

measurament of financizl assets and financial liabHitTes Is 2t falr value,

The following methods and assumptions of each reporting date were used to ostimate the falr values:
There were po transfers between Level 1, Leval 2 and Lavel 3 during the year,

€. Financlal risk managemant ehjective and policles

The Company's businesses are subject to several risks and uneertalntes including financial risks,

Th Company's board of directors has the responsibility for the blishment and ght of the Company's rlsk management framework. The Campany’s risk management polices act asan effective todl in
mitigating the vartous financlal rlsks to which the business Is exposed toln the course of the dally operations. The dsk management policies caver areas such as Tiquidity risk, forelgn exchange risk, interest
rate risk, counterparty credit risk and capital menagement. Risks are 1dentifled with active invalverment of senior management personnal at all tevels, Fach significant risk has & desfgnated ‘owner within the
Company at dh appropriate senfor level. Tha patential financial impact of the risk and its I’kellhood of a negative outcame are regelarly updated.

Marhet risk

Market risk Is the risk that the falr valuz of future cash flows of a financial instrumnent will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Markel risk comprises three types af sk interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price rlsk, such as aquity price risk and commadity risk. Flnanclal Instruments affected by market rlsk include , deposits and FYTOC) vastments, The objective of market risk management lsto
manage and control market risk exposures within accaplable paremeters while aptimising the return.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the falr value or future cash flaws of 3 financlzl instrament will fluctuate because of changes I market interesi rates. The Company is not expased to the risk of changesin
market interast ratas as the company's berrowings comprise of loans with fixed rate of Interest.

Waquidity Risk
‘The Campany requiras funds both for shart-term operatlanal needs as well as for long-term Investment programmes, Company Is core lnvestment campany and for meeting their short term and long term
funds raquirements, the company have adegquate corperate mix flunding plans

As at March 31, 2023 {Amount In INR}
Payments due by year Carryliig Amounts <1year 1-3 years >3 Year
Non-currant borrewings 2,65,44,50,000 - - 3,65,44,50,000
Current borrowings 13,1555 000 13,15,55,000 - -
ather financial lfabllitles 1,64,12,242 1,64,12,242 - -
Provislons 10,62,3%7 10,62,397

Other Current Nzbititi 19,43,312 19,43,322 - -
Total 3,80,54,62,361 15,10,12,961 - 3,65,44,50,000

As at March 31, 2022

Payments due by year Carrying A <] year 1-3yeats >3 Year
Man-current horrowings 4,10,46,00,000 - - 4,10,46,00,000
current harrowlngs 43,70,00,000 43,70,00,000 - -
Trade payables 4,181 4,181

Cllter financtal liabilities 7,40,51,144 7,40,51,244

Other Current llabllities 45,87,117 49,87,117 - -
Tatal 4,62,06,42 542 51,60,42,542 - 4,10,46,00,0600




{d) Countezparty and concentralion of credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk Lhat counterparty willl defaull an ils contractual obligations resulting in financlal loss ta the Company. S

lice Company Is care Investment company and company has not dealing

with any cantractual oblization with counterparties for supplies of gaods and servica except reyaly incame from group companics, therefore the Campany has net affected with credit rist of financial lass

from defauits,

Nane of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, Investments are past due or iImpal
non-current) carried in books, there were no Indications that defaults in payment obligations wil occur,

Ired, Regarding lrade receivables, loans and other financial assels iboth current =nd

{Amount Tn MR}

Partleulars Carrying Amounts <1 year 1-3years >3 Year
As et 31st March 2023 .
Mon-current Investments 4,02,89,38,257 - - 4,02,89,38,257
Loan and advances 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 - -
Qther currant assats 40,975 40,975 - -
As at 31st March 2012
fan-current investments 4,24,61,28,257 - - 4,24,61,18,257
Gther current assels 11,940 11,940 - -

(2} Currency risk
The Company Is nat exposed to any aurrency risk as it operates in domestle market.

{f} Caplital Management

The Company manages Its eapltal structure and makes adjustinents In light of changas in econamic conditions and i}
managing capltat is to ensure that it malatalns an efficlent capital structure and safeguard the Company's ability to continue 35 3 gal
far sharehofders, For the purpose of the Company’s capltal management, capital includes issued equily capital and all other equity reserves. Debt fn

currept maturlties,

iGearing Ratlo

Particular As at 3ist March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Borrowings 3,80,24,57,242 4,61,56,51,244]
Cash & Cash Equivalent 3,20,90,430 83,72,096|
Net Debt 4,77,03,66,31% 1,62,40,23,340
Equity Share Capital 5,06,06,060 5,06,06,060
Other Equity 12,53,24,984 -41,63,80,208
Total Caplital 7,59,31,044 -36,57,74,148
13.66 -

Gearing RaHo could nat be calculated as at 31st March, 2022 due to nepative Net Warth,

he requirements of the financial covenants. The Company's primary objective when
Ing eoncern In arder 1o support 1ts business and provide maximem returns
dudes long term and short term borrowings Including




Caplial indla Corp Private Limlted

CIN: U5930D 207 2PTCI95053

Nates to financlal statements for the Financlal year ended 31st March, 2023
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Ratlo Analysis
Ratio Type

Current Ratlo,

Debt-Equity Ratto,

Debt Service Coverage
Ratio,

Return on Equity Ratio,

Net capltal turnover
ratio,

Net profit ratio,

Return on Capital
employed,

Nunterator
Current Assets
Total Debt/Borrawings

Farning for debt
services = [blet profit
after tax) + {Mon cash
operating expenses) +
{Interest) + (Other non
cash adjustments)

Met profit after tax

Revenue from
Operatians

Met profitafter tax

Frofit before interest &
tax

Denominator
Current Liabllities

Shareholder fund

Debt services*

Average Shareholder
aquity

‘Working capital

Revenue from
Cperatlons

Capltal Employedif

* Debt Services = Interest on Borrowings + Principal Repayment
# Capltal Employed = Shareholder's Funds + BerrowIngs

Reason for Varlances

315t March, 2023

0.13

1372

018

085

047

31st March, 2022 Varlance {in %)
¢.02 725.85
-0,00 2,078,57

Boint 1 : Decrease In Carrent Ratfo s primarily attributable to decrease in current assets and decrease in liabilitles during the year.
Polnt 2 + [ncrease in Debt service coverage ratlo can not be strictly compared as the fast year DSC ratio was In negative.
Peint 3 : Changes In thase ratios can not be explained due to most of them being negative or zero In the previous year,

Sepment Reporting

Campany Is operating In single segment l.e, Investment actlvitle:

Contingent Llakilities

s therefore na disclosures have been made for segment reporting as per Ind AS 108

[Amount In INR)

Corporate Guarantee to Axls Finance Limited

31st March, 2023

515t March, 2022

Corperate Guarantee has been pravided by the Company to A¥Ts Finance
Umited agalnst the term loan obtained by Sitaram Niwas Private Limilted,

1,04,50,00,000

Capital Commitment -Others

{Amount in INR)

Commitments

Sist parch, 2023

3ist March, 2022

The Company is engaged in the business of Investments in Equity of ils

Groups Companys. There is no Capital Commitment at the end of financial

period.

Distiosure 35 per Section 22 of “The Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006"

There are na Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Cempany owes dues which are outstanding for more than 45 days a

disclosed under The Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has heen determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infarmation available with

the Comnanv.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remalning unpald to any supplier

- Princlpal amount
- Interast therean

The amount of interast paid by the buyer in terms of Sectlon 16, of the Micro Small and Mediu

payment made to the suppller beyond the appeinted day during each acceunting vear.

The amount of interast due and payable for the perlod of delay in making payment [which have been
without adding the interest speciffed under Micro Smatl and Medlum Enterprise Development Act, 2006,

The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even In the s
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance asa deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterpiise Development Act, 2006.

m Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the

pafd but beyond the appointed day during the year) hut

ucceeding years, until such date when the Interest dues as abave are actually pald to the

Reason for
Varlance
Refer Point 1
below
Refer Paint 3
below

Refer Paint 2
below

NA

WA

Refer Point 3
below
Refer Polnt 3
balow

s at March 31, 2023 . This information as required ta be




32  Additional regulatory infermation
{i} No proceeding have been InitTated or pending agalnst the company for holding any benami property under Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction Act, 1988, read with rules made

thereunder.
(I The Campany has not been declared wllful defaulter by any bank or financial Instftution or ather fender.

{iil) 1n respect of investments, the Company has complied with the number of fayers prescribed under clause {87} of section 2 of the Campanles Act, 2013 read with the Cormpanies (Restriction an

number of Laversh Rules, 2017.
liv) The Company has not glven any advance or loan of invested funds from share premium or any other sources with the understanding that intermediary would directly or Indirectly fond or

Invest in other persan or enlity Identifled as uftimate beneficiaries of provide any guarantee or securlty on behalf of uitimate beneficiaries. The Company has nat recelvad any fund lrom any
person or entity with the understanding that the Company would directly or Indirectly fand or Tnvest in other person or entlty identifled as ultimate beneficiary or provide any guaraniee or
seculrty or the Hke on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary.

{v) The Company does not have any transaction with companies stuck Off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or under sectien 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

[vi) The Company has not proposed any dividend during the year Tn view of Tts future plans for expansion.

{vil} The company is nat covered undsr section 135 of Companies Act 2013 hence no proviston for Corporate Social Resposibiliy s made .

1lll} The company has not horrewed any funds from Banks or Flnanclal Institutions during the year,

i} The Company do not have any chsrges or satisfaction which Is yet 10 be registared with Reglstrar of Companies [ROC) beyond the statutory perlod.

[¥] The Company had not granted any loans or advances In the nature of loans to prometers, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companles Act, 2013}, elther severally or
jointly with any ather persen, that are repayable on demand or without specifylng any terms or perlod of repaymant.

{xfl No schame of arrangerments as applicable has been appraved by the Competent authority In terms of Section 230 to 237 af the Companies Act,2013.

{xi} The Campany does not have any Property, plant and equipments, Immovable property, Capital work-In-progress, Intangible assets under development and lnvestment property.

(xlii} {a) The Mansgement of the company represents that, ta the best of its knov/ledge and helief, no funds {which are materfal 2lther Individually or I the agaregate} have been advanced or
loaned or invested {sither from borrowed funds ar share premium or any ather saurces ar kind of funds) by the Company te or in any ather persan or antity, including foreign entity
[“ntermediarles”), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intarmediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or fnvest in other persons or entities
identified Tn any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“l/itimate Beneflclaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like en behall of the Ultimate Beneficiarles.

[iil] {b) The Managerment of the company further represents, that, to the hest of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are materlal efther individually o7 in the aggregate) have been recefved
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity {“Funding Partles”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shell, whether,
directly or indlrectly, land or invest in other persons or entities identifled in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficlaries”} or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneflciartes.

{xiv) The Company has made Investments and granted loans of aduances in the nature of loans during the year.

[xv} During the year company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of Companles Act, 2013,

{xvi) There are no whistle blower complalnts raceived by the company during the year.

{xvil) Previous year figures have been regrouped/recfassifled wherever necessary.

taviil) There has been no transactions not recorded in hooks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income durlng the year In tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961,
{xix} The Corapany has not traded or favested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

33 fapital Indfa Corp LLP has been converted from LLP te private limited company Le. Gapial Indla Corp Private Umited (*Company") and wpan such corvarsion, the Company falls within the
definition of core Investment company as defined in the Master Directions issued in this regard by the Reserue Bank of India {"RBI"}. The Company has filed the requisite application with RBi for
registratlon as Core investment Company within the permissible timelines and the application 1s under consideration with RBI, Since the registration s not granted therefare necessary disclosure
and the financlal statements have not been drawn 25 requlved by Reserve Bank of Indfs guldelines,

As per our report of aven date attached For and on beholf of the Board of Directors of
For AVK & Assoclates o Capit, mru\a Coip Private Limited
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Firm Regn. No, 026358N
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